
 
 

 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Adult 
Social Care 
 

Tuesday, 17 December 2024 at 9.00 am 

Room 3 - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 
If you wish to view proceedings, please click on this Live Stream Link. 

However, that will not allow you to participate in the meeting. 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 

overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on 24 December 2024 unless called 

in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 

 

These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
Martin Reeves 
Chief Executive 

December 2024 
 

Committee Officer: Committee Services 
E-Mail: committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

Note:  Date of next meeting: 21 January 2025 
 

 
 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

https://oxon.cc/DDCMASC17122024


Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  
 

See guidance below. 
 

2. Questions from County Councillors  

 
Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working 

days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet 
Member’s delegated powers. 

 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is 
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the meeting) 

and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with questions at 
Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item will receive a 

written response. 
 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be 

the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor 
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the subject of further 

debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before 
the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting, 
together with any written response which is available at that time. 

 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

 
Members of the public who wish to speak at this meeting can attend the meeting in 
person or ‘virtually’ through an online connection. 

 
Requests to speak must be submitted by no later than 9am four working days before the 

meeting.  Requests to speak should be sent to 
committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk . 
 

If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your presentation to 
ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken into account. A 

written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9 am 2 working days before 
the meeting. Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet.  
 

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 2) 

 

The Cabinet Member is asked to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17 
September 2024 and to receive information arising from them. 

 

5. Technology Enabled Care (Pages 3 - 10) 

 

Cabinet Member: Adult Social Care 
Forward Plan Ref: 2024/288 

Contact: Izzie Rockingham, Commissioning Manager – Improve Enable 
(Isabel.Rockingham@oxfordshire.gov.uk)  

mailto:committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:Isabel.Rockingham@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Page 3  
 

 

 
Report by the Corporate Director of Adult Social Care (CMDASC). 

 
The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to:  

 
a) Approve the proposal to deliver a new Telecare Monitoring and Response 

Service, by deployment of the Buckinghamshire Framework from April 2025 

 
b) Note the changes from the current Telecare Monitoring and Response Service 

for existing users and the mitigating actions to support this 
 

c) Note the opportunity to develop how the Council uses Technology Enabled 

Care (TEC) to support our residents to live independently at home as part of 
this service 

 

Councillors declaring interests  
General duty  

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 

on the agenda headed ‘Declarations of Interest’ or as soon as it becomes apparent to 

you.  

 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?  

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your employment; sponsorship (i.e. payment for 

expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 

election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the 

Council’s area; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be 

recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the 

Council’s website.  

 

Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member 

her or himself but also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with 

as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 

Declaring an interest  

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a 

meeting, you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature 

as well as the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after 

having declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the 

item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception  

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code 

of Conduct says that a member ‘must serve only the public interest and must never 

improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and 

that ‘you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 

questioned’.  

 



Page 4  
 

 

Members Code – Other registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 

wellbeing of one of your other registerable interests then you must declare an  interest. 

You must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and you must withdraw from 

the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and happiness; 

anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively or 

negatively, is likely to affect their wellbeing. 

Other registrable interests include:  

a) Any unpaid directorships 

b) Any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority. 

c) Any body (i) exercising functions of a public nature (ii) directed to charitable 

purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a 

member or in a position of general control or management. 

 

Members Code – Non-registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or 

wellbeing (and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests), or the financial 

interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must declare the interest.  

 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing, 

a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or 

wellbeing of a body included under other registrable interests, then you must declare the 

interest.  

 

In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your 

interest the following test should be applied:  

Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being:  

a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;  

b) a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest. 

 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at 

the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter 

and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. 

 



 

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL 
CARE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 17 September 2024 commencing at 9.00 

am and finishing at 9:05 am.  
 
Present: 

 
 

Voting Members: Councillor Liz Leffman  – in the Chair 

 
  
Officers: 
 

Colm O’Caomhanaigh (Democratic Services Manager), 
Jack Nicholson (Democratic Services Officer) 

  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the matters, reports and recommendations 

contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting, and decided as set out 
below.  Except as insofar as otherwise specified, the reasons for the decisions are 
contained in the agenda and reports, copies of which are attached to the signed 

Minutes. 
 

 
 

19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
(Agenda No. 1) 

 
There were none.  
 

The Leader of the Council, Cllr Liz Leffman, welcomed everybody to the meeting and 
explained that she was substituting for the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care, Cllr 

Tim Bearder, as he was unavailable, as per the Constitutional provision in Part 4.4, 
Section 2 (b). 
 

20 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS  
(Agenda No. 2) 

 
There were none. 

 

21 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  
(Agenda No. 3) 

 
There were none. 
 

22 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
(Agenda No. 4) 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2024 were approved and signed by the 

Chair as a correct record. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



3 

23 LIVE WELL AT HOME FRAMEWORK  
(Agenda No. 5) 

 

The Chair agreed to the recommendations in the report. 
 
Resolved to:  
 

a) Approve the proposal for Adult Social Care to take advantage of the 

opportunity to extend the current Live Well at Home (LWAH) Framework 
for reablement, long term home care and Extra Care Housing by a further 

2 years from 1 April 2025 – 31 March 2027 (contract value £67.6m). This 
extension includes plans for a 1-year review to inform next steps from 
April 2027. 

 
 

24 SPECIALIST DEMENTIA BED BLOCK PROVISION - JULY 2023  
(Agenda No. 6) 

 
The Chair agreed to the recommendations in the report. 

 
Resolved to:  
 

a) Endorse the decision of the Director of Adult Social Care to approve the 
funding for a 20-bed block contract with Vale House care home in Oxford 

for the supply of Nursing specialist care home beds to manage the needs 
of individuals who present with complex dementia and/or mental health 
issues and who require a care home bed in Oxfordshire. 

 
b) Endorse the decision of the Director of Adult Social Care to approve the 

contract award to Vale House following a procurement exercise. Contract 
to commence from 01 July 2023 for 1 year with the option to extend for a 
further year. 

 

25 SPECIALIST DEMENTIA BED BLOCK PROVISION - JULY 2024  
(Agenda No. 7) 

 

The Chair agreed to the recommendations in the report. 
 
Resolved to:  
 

a) Endorse the decision of the Director of Adult Social Care to extend the 

contract with Vale House for nursing specialist care home beds from 01 
July 2024 to 30 June 2025. 

 
 
 in the Chair 

  
Date of signing   

 
 

Page 2



 

   

V2.0 Nov 2024 

Decision for Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 
– 17 December 2024 

 

Technology Enabled Care 
 

Report by Corporate Director of Adult Social Care 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to: 

 
a) Approve the proposal to deliver a new Telecare Monitoring and Response 

Service, by deployment of the Buckinghamshire Framework from April 2025 
b) Note the changes from the current Telecare Monitoring and Response 

Service for existing users and the mitigating actions to support this 

c) Note the opportunity to develop how the Council uses Technology Enabled 
Care (TEC) to support our residents to live independently at home as part of 

this service 
 

Executive Summary 

 
2. It is recommended that, following the expiry of the current Telecare Monitoring 

and Response contract on 31 March 2025, that the Council calls off the 
Buckinghamshire Framework to deliver a successor Telecare Monitoring and 
Response Service for 2 years from 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2027.  

 
3. The Telecare Monitoring and Response service supports people to live 

independently at home through providing technology to enable remote 
monitoring and a visiting response service. This provides assurance to 
Oxfordshire residents and their families and reduces the risk of admissions to 

hospital. 
 

4. The cost of delivering the Telecare Monitoring and Response service is 
increasing and the budget for the service has also increased to account for this. 
The current budget for 2024/25 is £1,202,976.  

 
5. The proposed approach for the new contract for service in point 2 will optimise 

existing resources and infrastructure to deliver a service that offers better value 
for Oxfordshire residents and the Council. This involves calling off the 
Buckinghamshire Framework agreement to deliver the service through their 

community equipment provider, NRS Healthcare Limited – hereafter ‘NRS’. As 
NRS are also Oxfordshire’s current community equipment provider, this will 

enable the Council to integrate the existing telecare and equipment services 
and achieve more efficient delivery of equipment to support people to live at 
home. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



   

 

2 

 

6. The recommended approach in point 2 will provide continuity of service to 
existing telecare users while also supporting the Council to realise its strategic 
ambitions to improve the use of technology enabled care to support people to 

live independently at home and prevent admissions to care homes and/or 
hospital.  

 
 
Background 

 
7. The Telecare Monitoring and Response Service supports the wellbeing 

principle within the Care Act 2014 and helps people to live safely and 
independently and avoid the need for long-term residential care. It also aims to 
reduce pressure on health services by providing people and their families with 

more proactive support at home, rather than by conveyance and/or admission 
to hospital.   

 
8.  In the current Telecare Monitoring and Response provision, the provider 

completes assessments, installs the main telecare base units and pendant 

alarms in people’s own home as well as some other sensors, and provides the 
call monitoring service. As part of call monitoring, there is a two-level response 

service consisting of either a telephone response or a visiting responder. 
 

9. The contract was awarded by the Council after an open market procurement 

in April 2018. The contract was for a period of 5 years with an extension 
clause of 2 years (1yr + 1yr). The contract value was a fixed price for the term 
of the contract. The Council agreed to extend the contract for a further 1 year, 

from 1 April 2024 and ending 31 March 2025. There is no further option to 
extend. 

 
10. The Telecare and Monitoring Service is delivered in 2 separate contracts: the 

equipment is supplied and maintained in the wider Integrated Community 

Equipment Service and the Telecare Monitoring and Response Service is 
separate. This split model was originally driven by cost considerations. 

However, while this model may have offered greater value at the point of 
procurement, it carries inherent challenges in terms of delivery and 
relationship management between the providers. 

 
11. As part of collaborative working arrangements across the Buckinghamshire, 

Oxfordshire and Berkshire West (BOB) Integrated Care System (ICS), the 
Council has access to the Buckinghamshire Framework for equipment and for 
telecare. This Framework was developed to further support joint working 

across the ICS, optimise opportunities to share resources, deliver efficiencies 
and further strengthen the linkages between health and social care in the 

community equipment landscape. Buckinghamshire and Berkshire West 
deliver both their Community Equipment and Telecare services through this 
framework.  

 
12. The expiry of the current Telecare and Monitoring Service contract is an 

opportunity for the Council to consider how to provide a more effective and 
efficient Telecare Monitoring and Response service. The Council has, 

Page 4



   

 

3 

 

therefore, been exploring opportunities to call off the Buckinghamshire 
Framework to provide the Telecare Monitoring and Response Service from 1 
April 2025. This removes the requirement to go out to tender as would 

otherwise be required under Contract and Procurement rules, instead using an 
existing contract to deliver the service for Oxfordshire residents from April 

2025.  
 

13. This contract opportunity also allows the Council to develop its ambition to 

support more people through Technology Enabled Care (TEC) and embed this 
into Adult Social Care in Oxfordshire. 

 
 

Contract Procurement Options  

 
14. A telecare and monitoring service is strictly not part of the Council’s core 

responsibilities under the Care Act. It might be possible to let the contract 
expire on 31 March 2025. However, this would not be in line with the Council’s 
ambitions around the Oxfordshire Way to support independence and 

preventative support that enables people to remain in their own home. It would 
leave Oxfordshire residents with no Telecare Monitoring and Response 

Service from 1 April 2025 and likely impact hospital admissions. 
 

15. Alternatively, the Council could extend the current Telecare and Monitoring 

Service Contract exceptionally by a direct award to allow for an open market 

procurement of a successor provider. This would retain the complexity of the 

split service noted at paragraph 10 which has in part driven some of the cost 

pressures in the current model.  

  
16. The preferred option is to allow the existing contract to expire on 31 March 

2025 and deploy the Council’s option to call off against the 
Buckinghamshire Framework to provide a successor Telecare 

Monitoring and Response Service for 2 years from 01 April 2025. Please 

refer to paragraph 17. 
 
17. Deployment of the Council’s option to call off from the Buckinghamshire 

Framework offers several additional benefits.  

(a) Changes to the service would include a charging model based on a flat 
rate rather than payment by activity, which has reduced the cost 
projections for the new service. The financial implications of this are 

outlined in section 28. 
(b) Establishment of a 2-year TEC Development Manager role specific to 

Oxfordshire. The postholder would work in partnership with the Council 
to support the development of the TEC service. The Council’s ambition 
is to improve how we use technology and adopt a more proactive and 

personalised TEC service, beyond our more reactive telecare model, to 
better support people to live independently in their own homes.  

(c) The new service proposal would otherwise feature the same 24/7 
monitoring and response coverage, installation and annual reviews of 
telecare equipment.   

Page 5



   

 

4 

 

 
18. There will be some minor differences to the service for existing users, 

including changes to the responders’ ability to provide personal care and 

medication management in an emergency. Oxfordshire is an outlier in 
providing this as part of telecare and this aspect of the service is also not 

frequently used. Commissioners are working with the Principal Occupational 
Therapist to manage the transition to the new service and communicate this 
clearly to service users and the provider. 

 
19. There is an opportunity within the Framework call off for the Council to further 

develop the model and the business and technology options as part of 
negotiation.   

Corporate Policies and Priorities 

 
20. The Council’s Strategic Plan for 2023-2025 focuses on prioritising the health 

and wellbeing of residents, supporting carers and social care system, and 
partnership working. Further, the Oxfordshire Way highlights how the Council 
wants Oxfordshire residents to lead safe, healthy, happy lives.  

 
21. The Telecare Monitoring and Response Service enables people who may be 

vulnerable to access support. As such the Council should continue to 
commission services to support people to maintain their independence, 
provide assurance to people and their families that they can remain safe and 

secure in their own home, and enable access to support should they need 
assistance.  

 
22. The recommended approach outlined in paragraph 17 would contribute to the 

Council’s and system priorities including: 

 

 Information and guidance on options available to support independent 

living; 

 supporting hospital discharges where appropriate; 

 preventing or reducing hospital admissions; 

 increased safety and potential reduction in anxiety for people living in the 
community; 

 working in partnership with other services commissioned in Oxfordshire. 
 

23. Telecare services are part of the Council’s Technology Enabled Care (TEC) 
offer to support people to live independently at home. The expiry of the 

Telecare service contract is an opportunity to widen the scope of this service 
to champion more preventative approaches to support Oxfordshire residents, 
expand the scope of remote support in people’s homes (including Telecare 

Monitoring and Response services), embed the use of assistive technology 
and extend the range or reach of the Council’s offer. This is being explored as 

part of Council’s wider Technology Enabled Care programme.  
 
24. The Buckinghamshire Framework was intended to be a stepping stone 

towards more integrated, BOB-wide working for community equipment. Calling 
off the framework for telecare further supports this. Alignment with other Local 

Page 6



   

 

5 

 

Authorities in the BOB footprint in how the Council delivers equipment reflects 
the broader strategic ambition for BOB ICS.  
 

25. The Integrated Community Equipment Services contract with NRS which in 
part covers the delivery of the Telecare Monitoring and Response service as 

set out above was extended by 3 years from April 2023 and will now expire in 
March 2026. There could be an opportunity to call off the Framework for 
Community Equipment more broadly. This option is being explored by 

commissioners as part of the procurement process. 

Dependencies 

Digitalisation 
 
26. The BT OpenReach Digital Switchover and the changing of analogue 

telephone services to digital connectivity will impact on telecare equipment. All 
analogue equipment must be switched over so that it is compatible with digital 

requirements by 31 January 2027. A key decision to allocate resource and 
staffing to the switchover project was made in April 2024. 

 

27. The switchover to digital is an opportunity that can be incorporated into the 
next steps for Telecare services.  

Financial Implications 

 
28. The service would be funded through the existing Telecare Monitoring and 

Response Service budget.  
 

29. The new service would cost between £881,373 and £949,810 per year, 
dependent on activity levels in the first few months. This annual cost is less than 
the £996,045 spent on the service for 2023/24.  

 
30. Following receipt of approval to proceed with this option, we can further 

negotiate costings with NRS to ensure the best value for money for the Council.  
 

Comments checked by: 

 
Stephen Rowles, Strategic Finance Business Partner, 

stephen.rowles@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Legal Implications 

 

31. Buckinghamshire Council tendered (2021/S 000-029462) for a single supplier 

framework for the provision of Integrated Community Equipment Services – 

namely, the Buckinghamshire Framework.  A four-year contract was awarded 

to NRS which began on 30th June 2022. Call-off terms are for 5 years with an 

option to extend for up to two further years. The framework is accessible to 

contracting authorities that fall under the NUTS code UKJ1 (Berkshire, 

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Milton Keynes).   The Council intends to 

Page 7

mailto:stephen.rowles@oxfordshire.gov.uk


   

 

6 

 

award a call-off contract in accordance with the call-off process of the 

framework. 

 

32. The Legal Contracts team have been involved in reviewing the suitability of 
the Buckinghamshire Framework and will be involved in finalising the call-off 
contract under the Framework.   

 
Comments checked by: 

Marina Lancashire, Lawyer – Contracts, 

marina.lancashire@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

Staff Implications 

 

33. The transition to the new service and ongoing contract management will be 
managed by existing staff in the Commissioning, Procurement and Quali ty 
Improvement teams.  

 
34. Legal advice regarding the impacts of Transfer of Undertakings - Protection of 

Employment (TUPE) transfers for existing Careium staff has also been sought. 
 

Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 
35. The equality and inclusion implications have been considered. The Telecare 

Monitoring and Response service supports the strategic priority to tackle 
inequalities in Oxfordshire, by delivering a service which support vulnerable 
groups and helps them lead a better quality of life.  

 
 

Sustainability Implications 

 

36. Initial projections for the service forecast a decrease in the requirement for in-
person response visits to people’s homes. This will contribute to the reduction 
of the Council’s carbon footprint and limit travel within the county. Longer term 

ambitions to utilise more technology, such as remote monitoring devices, will 
further reduce the need to travel.  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 8



   

 

7 

 

Risk Management 

 
 
Risk Impact Likelihood Mitigation 

Joining up the 
telecare and 
equipment contract 

services with 
different end points 

may create a 
dependency that 
could complicate 

future 
arrangements.   

If NRS do not continue 
the equipment service 
beyond March 2026 then 

the service may be 
unsustainable. 

 
The service may need to 
be separated back out in 

two years’ time. 
 

High There are separate 
agreements for the 
services.  NRS do not 

have a right to terminate 
either agreement and 

specific exit provisions 
could be built into the 
call-off contract. 

  

NRS could identify 

more (or more 
expensive 
equipment) 

Costs for telecare 

equipment could 
significantly increase. 
 

Medium There are standard 

equipment lists in place 
via the equipment 
catalogue. Quarterly 

audits of equipment to 
monitor appropriateness 

of TEC prescriptions will 
be conducted. 
 

May not get value 

by not testing the 
market.  

Paying more than is 

required 

Low Buckinghamshire tested 

market when 
establishing the 

framework. 
Benchmarking with 
other authorities in the 

region indicates 
comparable service 

costs. 

Increasing exposure 
to the risk of NRS’s 
organisational 

failure due to 
cashflow issues 

following the costs 
of responding to the 
cyber attack earlier 

this year.   

Loss of critical services Medium The latest publicly 
available financial 
information is historic so 

in order to assess their 
current financial position 

the Council has asked 
for cash flow 
statements/forecasts. 

Contingency 
arrangements for the 

telecare service would 
include direct use of the 
sub-contractors. 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 9



   

 

8 

 

Consultations 

 
37. The Council has engaged with our providers on this proposal and will continue 

to work together to ensure a smooth transition from 1 April 2025. 
 

38. As the service develops, the Council will seek direct feedback from service 
users to assess the impact this service has had on their lives. The Council will 
engage around transition within the Telecare and Support service. The Council 

will also engage more widely with current service users and the wider public 
about the intention to make greater use of technology-enabled care as part of 

our strategy development 
 
 

Karen Fuller, Corporate Director of Adult Social Care 
 

Annex: Nil. 
 
Background papers: Nil.  

 
  

 
Contact Officer: Isabel Rockingham, Commissioning Manager – Age Well 
                                           Isabel.rockingham@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 
December 2024 

Page 10


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Technology Enabled Care

